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DearMr. Custin:

The Commissionon Ethics& Public Trust consideredyour requestand rendered
its opinionat a publicmeetingheldon February27, 2008.

In your emailsculminatingon February21, 2008,you askedthe Ethics
Commissionto definethe term "pending"as it is usedin referenceto a bid or
awardfor goods,equipment,or servicesin the Miami BeachOrdinanceat
Section2-488 2a.

The Ethics Commissionopinedthat underthe above-referencedsectionof the
City of Miami BeachCode,abid or awardis pendingon the first day
governmentcommencesanyaction in the decision-makingprocessregardingthe
subjectbid or award.

In the factsyou presentedregardingthe City’s contractfor statelobbyist services,
as a contributorto Ed Tobin’ successfulcampaignfor City Commissioner,you
wereprohibitedfrom lobbying the City beginningon December12, 2007; that
datemarksthe City Commission’sfirst actionregardingthis award-whichwas
to refer the issueto the Financeand Citywide ProjectsCommittee.

THE MIAMI BEACH CODE AT § 2-488,Prohibited campaign contributions by
lobbyistson procurementissues,statesin pertinentpart-

2 a A person... who directly or indirectly solicits for
or makesa contribution to a candidatewho is electedto
the office of mayoror commissionershallbe
disqua!Wedfor aperiod of 12 monthsfollowing the
swearingin of the subjectelectedofficial from lobbying
the city commissionin connectionwith apresentor
pendingbid for goods,equipmentor servicesor on a
presentorpending awardfor goods,equipmentor
services.Emphasisadded.
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Although the term "pending" is not definedin the ordinance,the Ethics
Commissionwas persuadedby the interpretationrecommendedby the City of
Miami Beach.In atelephoneconversationto this office on February22, 2008,
Miami Beach’sSpecialCounselstatedthatthe City wishedto preventlobbying
on a bid or awardas soonas governmenttook its first actionin the decision-
making process.

In the current case,the EthicsCommissionreasonedthat banninglobbying
startingfrom the time the matterwas referredto committeeavoidsundue
influenceatthe formative stagesof the bid or award.This earlyprohibition
fulfills the spirit of the law, becauseissuesfrequentlyhandledin committees,
suchas the requirementsto be containedin an RFP, maysignificantly affect the
selectionof candidateswho ultimately qualify to receivethe award.

This opinionconstruesthe Miami-Dade Conflict of Interest& Codeof Ethics
OrdinanceandCity of Miami BeachOrdinance,but is not applicableto any
conflict understate law. Inquiries regardingpossibleconflictsunderstate law
should be directedto the Stateof Florida Commissionon Ethics.

Pleasefeel free to contactVictoria Frigo, StaffAttorney,at 305.350.0601,or
RobertMeyersat 305.579.2594,if we can be of furtherassistancein thismatter.

Sincerelyyours,

ROBERTMEYERS
ExecutiveDirector
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Gus Lopez, Directorof Procurement Fax at 305.673.7851

City of Miami Beach
1700 ConventionCenterDr.
Miami Beach,FL 33139


